
Date Published:18 November 2019     

Environment Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday 26 November 2019 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Chair

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 16)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 17 July 2019 and 
the Joint Meeting with Economic Growth on 18 September 2019.

Chair

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Chair

4  THE INCREASE IN COSTS OF RE-TENDERING PUBLIC 
TRANSPORT SERVICES (Pages 17 - 22)

To note a report on the measures already taken to manage the impact of 
recent cost increases and steps taking to address cost pressures in the 
next financial year.

Tom Main

5  CABINET FEEDBACK ON THE BIODIVERSITY TASK GROUP 
REPORT (Pages 23 - 28)

To consider Cabinet’s response to the Biodiversity Task Group 
recommendations.

Cllr Nigel Moor 
& Kath 
Haworth

6  ELECTRIC VEHICLE INFRASTRUCTURE 

To consider an update report on Electric Vehicle Infrastructure. Report to 
follow.

Philip Williams



    

7  GLOVER REPORT UPDATE 

To note a verbal update on the results of the Glover review to date.

Simon Excell

8  DIRECTOR'S REPORT: COMMUNITIES & INFRASTRUCTURE 
(Pages 29 - 40)

Colin Chick, Strategic Adviser (Communities & Infrastructure) to update 
the Committee on current issues (to include quarter 2 performance data).

Colin Chick

9  WORK PLAN (Pages 41 - 42)

To review the committee work plan and suggest items for consideration at 
future meetings. (Work plan attached).

Chair

10  FUTURE MEETINGS 

15 January 2020
4 March 2020
20 May 2020
15 July 2020
23 September 2020
24 November 2020

Chair

Membership –  Cllr Robert Bird, Cllr Dr John Cordwell, Cllr Kevin Cromwell, Cllr Stephen Hirst, 
Cllr Sajid Patel, Cllr Eva Ward, Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cllr Suzanne Williams and 
Cllr Keith Rippington 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, Rob 
Ayliffe 01452 328506 / e-mail: Rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of 
the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094 / e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

mailto:Rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Environment Scrutiny Committee held on 
Wednesday 17 July 2019 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, 
Gloucester.

PRESENT

Cllr Robert Bird 
(Chairman)
Cllr Dr John Cordwell 
(Vice-Chairman)
Cllr Kevin Cromwell

Cllr Sajid Patel
Cllr Eva Ward
Cllr Ray Theodoulou

1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Keith Rippington, Stephen Hirst and Suzanne 
Williams.

Cllrs Phil Awford and Robert Vines were present as substitutes.

2. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 22 May 2019 were approved and signed by the 
Chair.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Cllr Phil Awford declared that he chairs the National Flood Forum and is the 
representative for Wessex/Severn Wye at the Regional Flood Defence Committee.

4. DRAFT CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY 

4.1 Peter Wiggins, Outcome Manager for Community Infrastructure, opened the 
item with a presentation which went through:
 The background of where the Climate Change strategy has emerged 

from;
 what the Council has already done and its achievements; and
 what the new strategy will cover and it’s timeline going forward.

4.2 The Committee were reminded that on May 15th 2019, the Council declared 
a Climate Change Emergency by passing motion 836. The main objectives 
of the motion were to reduce corporate carbon emissions by at least 80% by 
2030, with the remaining being offset and creating a carbon neutral County 
by 2050, working with partners to secure an 80% reduction by 2030.

4.3 A graph was shown to illustrate for Gloucestershire’s emissions the original 
UK target under the Climate Change Act 2008 of an 80% reduction by 2050, 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

the new national target of carbon neutral by 2050, and Gloucestershire’s new 
target of an 80% reduction by 2030. All trajectories are taken from a 2005 
baseline figure.

4.4 A graph was then shown of the Council’s emission reduction performance 
against the 2006/07 baseline.

4.5 Members noted that the Council has been involved in climate change 
initiatives since 2005 with the Carbon Management Programme (CMP). The 
declared 10% emission reduction by 2010 was reached early and GCC had 
actually reached 12% by the target year.

4.6 Again in 2011, the CMP target was refreshed to a 60% emission reduction 
by 2020/21. Looking at the 2018 figures, GCC has already reached a 55% 
reduction and is therefore on target to reach 60% by 2020/21.

4.7 The Committee heard examples of the many energy-efficient changes the 
Council has made to date, including its £13.7m programme of LED street 
lighting across the County (50% reduction), and the Shire Hall refurbishment 
programme (57% reduction). Since the baseline 2006/7 figures, GCC has 
reduced its CO2 emissions from 26,820 (tonnes) to 12,060.

4.8 Members were then shown the proposed trajectory for reaching the 80% 
reduction by 2030 and ideas for how this may be reached. It was advised 
there was potential to look at additional office improvements, staff travel and 
renewable energy generation, for example.

4.9 Looking forward to the new Climate Change Strategy, members were 
advised this would be a 5 year rolling action plan, to include a review of the 
forthcoming year each time.

4.10 As part of the engagement on this the strategy’s development, there will be a 
questionnaire out to the public over the summer, to include questions on 
what the public considers needs to change, and what GCC can do to support 
these changes.

4.11 In addition the Committee heard an update from Gloucestershire’s Climate 
Change Summit on 21st May 2019. The outcomes and actions from this day 
included to:
 Develop an engagement plan, including setting up a Youth Climate 

Panel.
 Use the outcomes from the summit to develop a revised Climate Change 

Strategy for Gloucestershire and the council, for public consultation in the 
summer.

 Take the strategy to the Council’s Cabinet for approval following 
consultation.

 Feed the final strategy recommendations into Leadership 
Gloucestershire.

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

4.12 Members were advised the Youth Panel would be age 16-25, 5 
representatives from each district and applications will be invited in 
July/August this year, with a view of having a first meeting in 
August/September.

4.13 The Committee noted the next steps following today’s scrutiny would be to 
produce a draft strategy by July, which will go out to consultation over the 
summer. The final draft strategy would then go to Cabinet in November, 
ready to meet the Council’s budget process in February 2020.

4.14 The presentation closed with a video called ‘The Story of Solutions’.

4.15 On opening out to the Committee for comments and questions, clarification 
was given that this item was not only an opportunity for scrutiny but also for 
members to put forward their own ideas for the development of the strategy.

4.16 A member highlighted things in Shire Hall that were still awaiting 
refurbishment such as windows in the meeting rooms and unclad walls. 
There was a request for an updated timeline of Shire Hall refurbishment 
programme to be circulated.

ACTION: PHILLIP WILLIAMS

4.17 The Committee requested that members be kept as up to date as possible 
on the strategy development, including any engagement opportunities for the 
public. As Councillors, members are well connected and would be a vital 
platform for keeping members of the public, district/town/parish council’s up-
to-date and fully engaged in the development of the strategy.

4.18 It was noted many members were also district, town or parish Councillors as 
well and are already aware of brilliant projects happening within their 
divisions. It was highlighted by feeding back updates from the County; 
members may identify areas of possible co-ordination between the councils.

4.19 It was also noted that as one of the County’s biggest employers, there is an 
opportunity for well informed staff to spread the word and encourage 
feedback from their friends and family into the strategy.

4.20 A member commended the youth representation at the recent Climate 
Change Summit in Gloucestershire and was pleased to see the idea of a 
youth panel developing from the day. Members questioned how the selection 
process for the panel would be managed/advertised etc.

4.21 It was advised that the Council’s Communications team were driving the 
advertisement of the Panel, and there will be a keen push on maximising the 
use of social media. There is also an awareness of the potential need for 
external support with smart phone advertising etc. 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

4.22 Officers are also working closely with the Young Employees Network at the 
Council which will be a key engagement group going forward.

4.23 Members highlighted the need to take into account university students 
moving in and out of the County for studies and the importance of their 
engagement in the strategy.

4.24 Several members questioned whether setting the panel to 30 representatives 
was enough, considering the engagement of young people internationally on 
climate change. In response, officers advised they were mindful of the speed 
and capacity of finalising the panel over the summer. It was suggested that it 
may be best to not advertise a limited number to begin with and then review 
it once officers have seen the response rate.

4.25 A member highlighted that these sorts of discussions were taking place all 
over the Country within many other organisations and debates. They also 
commended Gloucestershire on its hard work up until this point, noting that 
this county is slightly ahead of the curve on its achievements already.

4.26 There was a discussion about the use of technology to reduce the need for 
business travel at GCC. Members were informed that there has been more 
investment in IT infrastructure such as highways teams implementing video 
conferencing around the county to avoid travelling to weekly meetings. There 
has also been the pool car system of Ultra Low Emission Vehicles, which 
include electric, hybrid and petrol vehicles, introduced for staff to book out for 
meetings. There are some occupations where travel cannot be avoided such 
as social work; it just needs to be done in a smart way.

4.27 There was a question as to where Javelin Park fits into the metrics of GCC’s 
carbon footprint. Members heard that the Plant will eliminate methane which 
is given off from landfill which is 25 times more damaging than CO2. It will 
also produce electricity for 25,000 homes and collect metals to be reused. 
Officers urged they will continue to push the waste hierarchy so only the 
materials that cannot be recycled/reused anywhere else will end up in the 
Plant.

4.28 The Committee were advised that as the Plant is owned by Urbaser Balfour 
Beatty’s the emissions are associated to them, the electricity produced will 
be owned by GCC. The transport of waste to the plant is not yet accounted 
for in the Council’s footprint.

4.29 There was concern from the Committee that the video shown in the 
presentation wasn’t suitable to use going forward. Officers reassured 
members there were no plans to use the video as part of this project, it was 
simply shown to stimulate discussion. Members requested officers to look 
into the possibility of GCC making its own video.

4.30 A member questioned whether schools and libraries came within the 
Council’s emissions data. It was advised that only maintained schools and 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

libraries would, academies have no requirement to submit such data to the 
Council or use the same energy suppliers.

4.31 Members commended officers efforts so far in this process, and also for the 
work done prior to the emergency declaration. It was highlighted how 
positive it was to see Gloucestershire continuing to lead on these efforts.

5. DIRECTOR'S REPORT, COMMUNITIES & INFRASTRUCTURE 

5.1 Colin Chick, Strategic Adviser (Communities & Infrastructure), updated the 
Committee on current issues. In particular, members noted that:

 At 2.3 the project remains  on track and the purchase of necessary 
property at Hatherley Lane is about to complete.

 The assessment meeting for Junction 10 went well, but officers were 
informed the decision is likely to be closer to Christmas than the autumn. 
The project is still on schedule to meet the 2024 deadline, if funding is 
approved.

 The Junction 9 scheme is at a critical stage. As stated in the report no 
funding has yet been approved, but the scheme is vital for several other 
departments including Homes England and Highways England. As no 
one department can afford the scheme alone, officers are currently 
exploring the option of taking a presentation to the Houses of Parliament 
for the day to promote the need for joined up Government to deliver it.

 Rail improvements are being to gain traction. It is vital that rail becomes a 
viable alternative for travel in the county, our tracks run alongside the m5 
and yet they service 1% of all trips. This is because many services are 
unattractive, especially for work commutes.

 The first stage of improvements are set to see a direct hourly services to 
London from December, allowing 2,500 extra seats going both ways each 
day and improved peak hour service availability. From 2021 a 30 minute 
frequency to Bristol and an improved service from North Cotswolds into 
London by the end of 2019.

 The second stage will be building the infrastructure to connect growth 
areas in a sustainable way.

 Javelin Park is now taking waste from all authorities.

5.2 There was a question on when the LED street lighting programme was due 
to complete. It was advised that there was a small proportion left to 
complete, mostly in tricky locations. A member asked for feedback on an 
area which had not been yet been completed.

ACTION: KATH HAWORTH

5.3 On questioning, the Committee were informed that if the Junction 10 bid is 
unsuccessful, the Council cannot afford to fund the scheme alone. There 
could be an option of using the County’s bid to Government through the 
Great Western Powerhouse.

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

5.4 There was a discussion about making rail use more attractive to run 
alongside all the improvements. Members advised the need to look at 
parking solutions for the County’s rail stations, as well as making pubic 
transport a more cost effective option. If there were to be a  significant 
increase in people using rail stations, this would create enough people for 
bus companies to consider extra services/new routes.

5.5 A member paid thanks to officers involved with all continuing flood alleviation 
works. There was a request to circulate the Environment Agency National 
Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management strategy consultation 
response.

ACTION: SIMON EXCELL

5.6 There was a question regarding electric vehicle charging points in 
Gloucestershire. The Committee heard a programme is being developed but 
there was nothing definitive to feedback yet. 

5.7 There is a lot of research needed around how the County will achieve the 
Government’s target and understanding the implications for Gloucestershire. 
Officers need to understand the number of electric vehicles currently on the 
road, what the increase needs to be, the reliance of households on on-street 
charging etc. There was also a suggestion of looking at a ‘try before you buy’ 
scheme to alleviate any apprehension for users.

5.8 Members requested a formal update at the next Committee meeting.

ACTION: PHILLIP WILLIAMS

5.9 On questioning, members were informed that the summer hours roll out at 
the recycling centres have been well received and work continues to improve 
access at all centres.

6. TASK GROUP REQUESTS 

6.1 The Chair invited Cllr Eva Ward to present both task group requests.

6.2 Cllr Ward first introduced the Single-use Plastics one page strategy advising 
of its origin and took the document as read.

6.3 Cllr Nigel Moor, Cabinet member for the Environment and Planning, 
welcomed the request and advised the Committee it would bring a good 
focus to an important issue.

6.4 The Committee unanimously agreed to approve that the Single-use Plastics 
Task Group be formed.

ACTION: DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

6.5 Secondly, Cllr Ward introduced the Javelin Park one page strategy, advising 
this was on behalf of Cllr Rachel Smith who was unable to attend the 
meeting.

6.6 Members of the Committee made the following comments:
 The one page strategy referenced no time span for the task group to run;
 As Javelin Park was not yet fully operational, it would be too soon for 

data to be available that’s requested in the strategy;
 If the request were to be approved, the project should be referred to as 

the Energy from Waste Plant not the incinerator; and
 The use of language throughout the strategy is suggestive towards a 

negative view of the scheme and should be more impartial.

6.7 From the officers’ perspective, the Committee were advised that it would be 
too soon to provide data and evidence that is being requested, and many 
questions in the strategy would only have speculative answers at this stage. 
It would also require support from the same team of officers who now need 
to provide support to the Single-use plastics task group that has just been 
approved.

6.8 In conclusion, the Committee unanimously agreed this was not the right time 
for this task group request and should be delayed for at least 6 months to 1 
year. Cllr Ward agreed to feedback to Cllr Smith of the Committees verdict.

7. WORK PLAN 

7.1 The Chair advised for the Committee’s next meeting on 18th September, 
there has been an agreement that it will take the form of a joint meeting with 
Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee (EGSC), to allow both Committees to 
receive the report on the Local Transport Plan.

7.2 This agreement had been made following discussions at the EGSC about 
the overlap of interest for both committees on particular items, currently 
identifying the Local Transport Plan as one of them. The Chair had 
discussions with the Chair of EGSC and it was agreed a joint committee 
meeting would allow both Committees a fair chance of scrutiny over this 
item.

7.3 This would therefore mean that the Biodiversity task group feedback 
currently on the work plan for September would be delayed until November. 

7.4 A member asked what would happen to the Committee’s Directors report for 
September. It was advised this report will be emailed to members for review 
and any member questions to be facilitated through Democratic Services. 
This will be subsequently published.

7.5 In addition, the following request were made:

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

 A report, as requested, on the electric vehicle programme to be added to 
the work plan for November.

 An update on the A429 Task Group for the January meeting.

8. FUTURE MEETINGS 

18 September 2019
26 November 2019
15 January 2020
4 March 2020
20 May 2020

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 12:41

Page 8



- 1 -

ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Environment Scrutiny Committee held on Wednesday 18 
September 2019 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT

Cllr Robert Bird
Cllr Dr John Cordwell
Cllr Kevin Cromwell
Cllr Stephen Hirst
Cllr Sajid Patel
Cllr Eva Ward
Cllr Suzanne Williams

Cllr Kate Haigh
Cllr Ben Evans
Cllr Klara Sudbury
Cllr John Murphy
Cllr Nicky Packer
Cllr Brian Robinson

1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Ray Theodoulou, Stephen Davies, Paul 
McCloskey, Gina Bloomefield, Jim Dewey, Keith Rippington and Matt Babbage.

Cllrs Shaun Parsons and Patrick Coleman were in attendance as substitutes.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

3. LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN REVIEW 

3.1 Members were reminded that this meeting was a joint meeting of the 
Environment and Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committees to 
consider a draft review of the Local Transport Plan (LTP). The joint nature 
had arisen from the cross over of interest for both Committees to scrutinise 
the Plan’s development.

3.2 The Chair advised members that the purpose of the item was for both 
Committees to comment, ask questions, and raise concerns/issues on the 
draft report presented. These comments will then be recorded and fed into 
the ongoing consultation before the report is sent to Cabinet in December.

Background

3.3 Simon Excell, Lead Commissioner for Strategic Infrastructure, introduced the 
item with a presentation outlining the background for the review and the key 
suggested changes.

3.4 The Committee were advised that the published draft review was not the 
final document. Following today’s scrutiny, an emerging draft consultation 

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

document will go to Cabinet and then to formal public consultation early 
2020.

3.5 The Council undertook early stake holder engagement on the draft document 
and feedback indicated the emerging reviewed LTP was much more in line 
with district and LEP policies.

3.6 It was explained that this review has come about due to the significant 
change in priorities and policies that have been seen recently, both locally 
and nationally.

3.7 It was important that the reviewed LTP linked well with the evolving climate 
change agenda, new Local Plans such as the Joint Core Strategy and the 
Local Industrial Strategy currently being produced by the GFirst LEP. It is 
vital for Gloucestershire that all such plans and strategies are co-ordinated.

Changes within the LTP document

3.8 Members were informed that a key change to the LTP was a new chapter on 
‘Shaping the Way to 2041’. This chapter looked towards a new timeline and 
beyond the 2031 timescale of the original LTP. Its focus will be to take 
consideration of trends, emerging technologies such as a better use of smart 
phones for transport, and new transport modes such as electric vehicles.

3.10 The ‘Overarching’ chapter has been revised to take account of the county’s 
priorities on climate change and the environment, growth, health and 
wellbeing and sustainable travel behaviour.

3.11 The ‘Public and Community Transport’ chapter has been updated. The term 
‘Park and Ride’ has been changed to ‘Transport Interchange Hubs’. The idea 
being that the concept should grow to include other modes of transport, 
rather than just the traditional car and bus model.

3.12 It was highlighted that there are currently 3 existing Transport Interchange 
Hubs, with another 6 proposed at M5 Junction 10, A46 Shurdington, 
Elmbridge, West of Severn, M5 Junction 11A and M5 Junction 12.

3.13 There will a focus on bus priority, especially in the congested areas, as well 
as an encouragement to invest in ultra low emission vehicles.

3.14 The Cycle Policy will be updated to strengthen Gloucestershire’s Cycle 
Network and to make cycling a more direct, safe, comfortable and therefore 
more attractive transport option for the County.

3.15 Members were shown a desired countywide cycleway map which envisaged 
a network of cycle routes from Tewkesbury Ashchurch in the North all the 
way down to Cirencester, encompassing Cheltenham and Gloucester on the 
way. 

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

3.16 The Freight and Highways chapter has been updated. This update included 
in particular, an attempt to ensure all HGV’s coming through the County are 
channelled into the most appropriate freight routes.

3.17 The chapter on Rail has been updated to reflect the ambitions of improving 
services and seating availability on all major routes in the County. Members 
were advised that the Rail Investment Strategy should be published later this 
year and will help inform the LTP, bids to government and LEP and train 
operating companies discussions.

3.18 Finally, there will be a new chapter on delivery which will move away from 
short/long term time periods for schemes to categories developed by a 
‘Scale of Impact’ indicator to provide objective classifications. 

Member questions

Cycling

3.19 There was discussion about the ‘desire line’ cycle network map that 
Members were shown in the presentation. Officers explained that this map 
was a ‘vision’ for the County’s cycle network, highlighting areas of growth 
and smaller settlements that residents want to see better cycle connections 
for. It was a developing plan and some areas are yet to have identified 
routes on the network for a cycle path to be installed.

3.20 In addition to the LTP vision, officers also highlighted the £3.6 million 
scheme to link cycling between Cheltenham and Gloucester that is emerging 
with Highways England. GCC is heavily engaged with this process and 
would expect work to begin in the next year.

3.21 A member highlighted that something that deters people from cycling at the 
moment is when they leave the designated cycle path; the roads they have 
to use are sometimes not fit for cycle use. Officers agreed it would be 
impossible and unnecessary to provide 100% cycle route coverage for 
residents, some of their journey will need to be on the existing road network 
and therefore it is vital these plans also include improvements to roads.

3.22 There was also a discussion about the types of cycle lanes currently used. A 
member was aware of research that showed if a cycle lane is painted on a 
highway, cars tended to pass closer to the cyclist than they would if there 
was no cycle lane. In addition, where there are bike symbols painted on the 
road, cars will not tend to treat this as a shared route. There was a 
suggestion that soft segregated cycle lanes may be the way forward to allow 
for a physical barrier between the car and the cyclist.

3.23 Linking the desire lines to new developments, a member raised the concern 
that infrastructure such as cycle routes tend not to be added to a new 
development until after, meaning retrofitting this infrastructure is more 
difficult.

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

3.24 The Committee were advised that traditionally the County would charge 
developers under a Section 106 for infrastructure required on new 
developments. Since the introduction of the ‘Community Infrastructure Levy’ 
which calculates a charge per roof rather than individually for education, 
highways etc. there is concern that developers will be undercharged and 
local authorities will miss out on vital infrastructure funds.

3.25 GCC is currently in close discussions with the district authorities (as the 
planning authorities enforcing the Levy) to ensure it is applied fairly.

3.26 In relation to hire bike schemes that have been trialled around the country, a 
member informed the Committee that some have not had the intended 
consequence i.e. bikes not being returned properly and just piling up in 
public places. It was advised that such schemes would more likely be 
provided by the private sector in the future.

3.27 A member informed officers that there was an issue of cycle lock up spaces 
at Kemble station. There were still only 12 compared to 600 car parking 
spaces.

Rail

3.28 A member noted that a company called Systra were being used to inform the 
2019 Rail Investment Strategy and expressed concerns that the last 
contractor to carry out this piece of work knew nothing about Gloucestershire 
and its challenges. It was reassured that SLC Rail have sub-contracted 
Systra who have carried out similar work in Swindon, Worcestershire and the 
North Cotswolds so already have a lot of local experience.

3.29 It was highlighted that when the improvements to train availability/capacity 
for Cheltenham and Gloucester happen, there will be a knock on effect on 
the need for more available connections to the rural areas for commuters 
going home to other areas of the County.

3.30 Local members were keen to highlight the importance of the Kemble station 
as a link to London for the West of the County and that it should be 
considered as a key Interchange Hub. Officers agreed that improvements to 
Kemble Station are needed and that rail upgrades are a key part of the LTP.

Public & Community Transport

3.31 A member questioned why there isn’t a joined up approach when it comes to 
the availability of public transport routes and places people may need to 
access such as hospitals. It was advised that the main issue with achieving 
this link is that bus services are generally commercially run and the Council’s 
ability to publicly subsidise bus routes is very limited.

Page 12



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

3.32 It was suggested an option that could be developed is demand responsive 
transport where, through the use of smart phones, buses can be requested 
for certain routes when they’re needed, rather than routes being subsided 
full-time and only used a few times day.

3.33 Another benefit of the LTP looking towards 2041 and beyond is the ability to 
solve transport problems as above with forward planning.

3.34 The Committee were advised that there has been a slight decline in bus 
service use, less than the national average. A member requested the data 
on bus use to be shared with the Committee.

ACTION: ORLAGH STONER

3.35 The Committee heard that GCC have developed an app called ‘GlosTalk’ to 
help people with disabilities find appropriate public transport. The app 
contains real time bus journey data and can tell you what stop to get off at 
etc.

3.36 Another issue faced by bus users is the traffic at peak hours which can 
sometimes significantly delay bus services. It was advised that bus priority 
lanes are assessed on a case by case basis.

3.37 The key for the review of bus services is to first identify and target bus routes 
and pinch points where interventions will reach the most people and make 
improvements for key corridors.

Highways and Freight

3.38 A member highlighted that the East/West access around Cirencester has 
had little focus within the LTP Review. Whilst they understand the main focus 
is around the increased housing in the Severn Vale area, Cirencester has 
serious traffic issues, which is only likely to get worse once the A417 
improvements are completed. In addition there is an issue of freight travel on 
the A429 Fosseway. 

3.39 In response, it was highlighted that the A417 improvement scheme is a 
Highways England led scheme and that they would have done modelling on 
the scheme’s impact. The A429 is a designated freight route on the map, 
and there isn’t any other route to send freight onto to connect the east to 
west area. There is a hope that future advice would be for freight destined for 
regional/national destinations to use national roads rather than cutting 
through County A roads. The Cotswold local plan has identified schemes 
that could improve this situation but they’re currently unfunded.

3.40 There was a question about what improvements could be made to the way 
freight is moved around the County. Members were informed that there is 
more awareness of freight moving onto rail in the future; Network Rail has 
also asked that freight terminals are more recognised within LTP’s. It was 

Page 13



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

also highlighted that the Interchange Hubs will increasingly link with freight 
movement so the HGV’s can be load onto smaller vehicles before being 
delivered into the towns.

3.41 A member requested data on the success of the Cotswold Lorry 
Management Zone in reducing the number of HGVs using unsuitable roads 
for their journey. 

ACTION ORLAGH STONER

3.42 A member highlighted that even though Junction 14 is technically out of 
County, it still had a big impact on Gloucestershire. Officers reassured they 
are aware of the impact of this junction on the road network but as the 
Councillor rightly pointed out, GCC would be unable to bid for funding 
improvements as it doesn’t fall within the County’s boundary.

General

3.43 It was questioned whether there had been consideration of self-driving 
vehicles now that the LTP has a 22 year span to 2041 and it is likely such 
technologies would come to fruition before then. It was noted that the change 
from 2031 (the original LTP timeline) to 2041 was to make sure it is inline 
with district local plans.

3.44 Officers advised self-driving vehicles have been considered in the 2041 
chapter, as are a lot of other technologies that may emerge from now until 
then. Whilst it is difficult to pre-empt these technologies when they are not 
yet widely available, it is vital that the LTP encompasses the possibilities so it 
can build the infrastructure ready. This may be for example exploring how 
different modes of transport connect with the infrastructure in real-time.

3.45 Members welcomed the discussion on a Rapid Transport System but were 
advised this is one of the schemes within the LTP that is yet to have any 
funding attached. Further feasibility work is being undertaken at this stage.

3.46 It was highlighted that a number of the schemes in the LTP Review were 
currently unfunded, and concern was raised about where the funds could 
come from. Members were advised that there are various different funding 
routes for transport schemes such as through the County Council, District 
Councils, developers, national government, sub national transport bodies, 
GFirst LEP and adhoc national funding pots .

3.47 There was a question about the prioritising of funding for the LTP projects. It 
was explained that the process will be adapted each time depending where 
the funding comes from. For example, if the funding is related to reducing 
CO2 emissions, the weight will be strengthened on that particular aspect of 
the scheme, meaning those schemes that score higher will be the most 
relatable to the funding.

Page 14



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

3.48 There was a question about the environmental impact of the plan, how does 
it help towards meeting the Council’s climate change emergency 
commitments. It was advised that there a specific climate change policy with 
the LTP and it strengthens transport targets for carbon neutrality to be inline 
with the GCC pledge. Climate change is also a key assessment criterion in 
selecting schemes which has resulted in 22 schemes relating to active, 
healthy transport choices and 7 to sustainable options.

3.49 There was a request whether one the review objectives could be changed to 
‘Restore the Environment’ instead of ‘Conserve’ as currently being used. It 
was advised that is this was only a review; to rewrite the Plan’s objectives 
would be to review the evidence base it was originally formed on. It was also 
important to be realistic about the scope of transport in restoring the 
environment; restoration falls more appropriately within district local plans.

3.50 A member queried how officers planned to engage with the public, beyond 
consultation and reduce the amount of cars on the road. It was agreed there 
is a huge task ahead in terms of changing behaviour in relation to climate 
change. 

3.51 The ‘Thinktravel’ document had been incorporated into the LTP, which is the 
Council’s brand for influencing travel behaviour. The ‘Thinktravel’ team are 
also working closely with businesses and schools, air quality and health 
partnerships; it recognised there are many contributing factors to people’s 
travel behaviour. It was also advised that the LTP public consultation will 
take a similar approach to the recent climate change consultation which was 
incredibly successful.

3.52 Members were encouraged after today’s meeting to feedback to their 
relevant district councils. There is also an emerging communications plan 
which will include day/evening stakeholder engagement sessions. It was 
reinforced that the Plan is still developing and changes will be made where 
necessary before and after public consultations. The Committee requested 
an email copy of the presentation/supporting documents from today’s 
meeting that they can share with their districts.

ACTION: DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

3.53 Several members highlighted that changing their travel to work often meant a 
significantly longer journey e.g. using a bus instead of driving. It was 
recognised that it will be impossible stop all car use, but the first area to 
focus on would be to reduce short journeys in cars. Evidence shows that a 
very high proportion of car use in the County is only for short journeys, and it 
would have a massive impact on the network reducing these alone. It is also 
key to improve public transport for people who do not have access to a car.

3.54 A member pointed out that the majority of the schemes revolve around the 
M5 areas of Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury and questioned what 
improvements are considered for the more rural areas. It was advised that 

Page 15



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

the 2041 chapter addresses improvements in connectivity for the Forest of 
Dean and Cotswolds via rail station improvements and high frequency bus 
services, but also the pinch point congestion problems at Chepstow. It was 
considered that improvements in technology could offer new opportunities 
such as electric bikes which would be more appropriate for hilly areas.

3.55 There was a discussion about electric vehicle infrastructure. Members noted 
the map in the presentation which showed current public electric vehicle 
charging points but questioned how the infrastructure would develop.

3.56 It was advised that there is currently a bid for funding with the LEP and GCC 
is working with a number of companies to understand the demand in each 
area of the county. GCC will be providing the infrastructure to allow 
individuals to make a change to an electric vehicle, although it is not 
envisaged this will be a like for like swap. It is still very important to 
encourage more people to reduce their car use and opt for a more 
sustainable transport option. The highway infrastructure cannot maintain the 
use of cars to continue as it is.

3.57 It was confirmed that a key action that would be taken away from this 
discussion is how GCC will prioritise the allocation of electric charging points.

3.58 A member highlighted that improved technology could provide the support 
for more employees to work from home and thus avoid the need to travel into 
work/for meetings. It was advised this was being considered in other 
departments of the Council but wasn’t a specific LTP issue. When they are 
developing the transport network however, the team would carry out a 
facilitating role by providing space for cables etc.

3.59 There was a concern about problems faced by people living in town centres 
that do not have allocated parking and have to continually move their 
vehicles. It is hard to encourage walking and cycling if people cannot leave 
their vehicles. In response, there are a lot of innovative projects happening 
such as advertising underused parking spaces. Another key improvement for 
this problem also is the strengthening of the Transport Hubs.

3.60 Cllr Moor, Cabinet Member for Environment and Planning, highlighted this 
review had produced a much more ambition document in comparison with 
the original Plan and he welcomed in particular the work to improve rail, 
sustainability and carbon emissions. The Cabinet Member thanked the 
Committee for all their comments and a very helpful meeting.

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 12:58

Page 16



Environment Scrutiny Committee 

Report Title: The Increase in Costs of Re-tendering Public Transport 
Services

Meeting Date: 26 November 2019

Chairman:

Presenting Officer: Tom Main

Purpose of Report: To inform and update the Environment Scrutiny Committee 
(ESC) with regards to current issues in procuring public 
transport services and the outlook for public transport in 
Gloucestershire following the large increases in the cost of 
contracts in the previous 18 months

Planned Dates January 2020 – Specification of the Rural Transport Project 
drafted
March 2020 – Version 2 of the Dynamic Purchasing 
System is released

Background 
documents:

Cost pressures on subsidised public transport contracts 
Cabinet Report (March 2019)
Establishing a Dynamic Purchasing System for the 
Procurement of Transport Contracts (July 2019) (July 
2019)

Appendices N/A

Recommendations To note the measures already taken to manage, the impact 
of recent cost increases on the public transport network 
and steps being taken to address cost pressures in  the 
next financial year.

Page 17

Agenda Item 4

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s51390/Item%207%20-%20Cost%20Pressures%20and%20Continued%20Support%20for%20Subsidised%20Public%20Transport%20Contracts.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s51390/Item%207%20-%20Cost%20Pressures%20and%20Continued%20Support%20for%20Subsidised%20Public%20Transport%20Contracts.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s54935/10.%20Establishing%20a%20Dynamic%20Purchasing%20System%20for%20the%20Procurement%20Contracts%20FINAL.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s54935/10.%20Establishing%20a%20Dynamic%20Purchasing%20System%20for%20the%20Procurement%20Contracts%20FINAL.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s54935/10.%20Establishing%20a%20Dynamic%20Purchasing%20System%20for%20the%20Procurement%20Contracts%20FINAL.pdf


1. Background

1.1.  The Integrated Transport Unit (ITU) is responsible for the delivery of 
passenger transport that Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) provides. 
This can be categorised as subsidised public transport (timetabled public bus 
services), home to school transport, special educations needs (SEN) 
transport and community transport (pre-book minibus transport provided by 
local community organisations e.g. Lydney Dial-a-Ride).

1.2.The council spends around £3m each year providing socially necessary 
public transport to enable communities across the county to access essential 
services including work, education, health and food shopping.. 
Gloucestershire’s public transport network can be split into two groups, 
‘commercial’ and ‘subsidised’. The commercial network is made up of the bus 
services that are provided by a private operator without any contractual 
financial support from GCC. Operators are allowed to choose what routes to 
run and do not require permission from GCC to operate them. Over 90% of 
the 20 million local bus journeys made in the county are on these services. 
GCC uses its public transport budget (currently £3m per annum) to fill in gaps 
in the network where there is a significant demand for public transport but this 
is not sufficient to be commercially viable for an operator.  This function is 
handled by the ITU where contracts for bus services are owned, managed 
and tendered.

1.3.A paper was brought to Cabinet in March 2019 detailing how from April 2018 
there were significant increase in the prices of bus service contracts as they 
came up for retender, the average increase was 35% however this figure 
fluctuated considerably from contract to contract. Given the number of 
contracts that were due for retender in financial year 2019 there was a risk of 
overspend. Subsequently £223k of additional funding for subsidised bus 
services was agreed by Council in the Integrated Transport Unit’s budget for 
2019/20 and Cabinet agreed  to review expensive bus service contracts with 
a view to making them more viable.

2. Underlying Causes

2.1.  There are a range of issues for operators that are leading to these rising 
costs, they include:

 Increase in operating cost – Insurance, fuel, employment costs, the 
national living wage and a general driver shortage in recent years.

 Legislative issues – several recent and approaching pieces of 
national legislation to improve the accessibility of vehicles, reduce 
emissions and provide on-board audio/visual equipment have 
meant that newer vehicles are required, at additional cost.

Page 18



 Lack of competition - Today in Gloucestershire we have less than 
half the number of operators than we had in 2006, which was circa 
24 operators. While some of this is driven by legislative changes, 
tighter standards have also played their part. Stagecoach now 
carries over 95% of the county’s bus passengers, with Pulhams 
carrying around 2%.

 GCC contracts – Historically operators have received annual 
inflationary increases to contracts they hold. Around 2011 this was 
stopped in Gloucestershire and many other councils as the funding 
challenge took hold and the ITU looked for ways it could reduce is 
spend on discretionary parts of its budget. The consequence of this 
is that operators are now pricing this lack of annual increase into 
their initial tender price which contributes to the large increase at 
retender.

3. Current Position

3.1.  In the 18 months from April 2018 there was a spike in the number of 
contracts that had to be retendered. Contracts worth approximately 75% of 
the total spend on public transport were due to expire. Retendering of these 
contracts has been mostly completed with staggered end dates to avoid 
future bunching. In the next 18 months there are far fewer contracts expiring 
and due for retender.

3.2.Following the approval of the budget increase for 2019/20 and the March 
2019 Cabinet decision approving the ITU’s approach to manage costs the 
risk of an overspend has been reduced. The ITU has constantly reviewed the 
bus network to remove any unused trips, design timetables so they allow for 
maximum synergy with other services and worked with our operators to 
understand the financial pressure they face in order to mitigate this to some 
degree.

3.3.As this financial year has progressed it has become clearer that the risk of 
overspend on public transport contracts has reduced significantly. The ITU is 
currently forecasting a break even budget for public transport and with few 
developments expected by April 2020 this is not expected to change.

4. 2020 – Opportunities and Issues

4.1.  There are a multitude of proposals, projects and potential issues that could 
have both a positive and negative effect. In March 2020 the new version of 
our Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) is scheduled to go live. The DPS is 
an online marketplace we have set up for our operators to bid for contracts 
we release. This gives us an efficient way of allowing all operators the same 
chance to bid for work, increasing competition and lowering prices. A 
successful DPS is vital to operating within budget.

4.2.The climate emergency and focus on reducing fossil fuel emissions in 
Gloucestershire presents the ITU with both challenge and opportunity. There 
are many modern vehicles in the public transport network that are up to the 
most recent diesel engine standards emitting far less pollutants and 

Page 19



particulates than those only a few years older. However there are an 
unknown number of older vehicles which, whilst still legally compliant, could 
benefit from being upgraded to reduce emissions, e.g. from Euro IV to Euro 
VI standards. This presents a challenge to the council as we would almost 
certainly see this price passed to us in the form of higher contract costs. Care 
is required to ensure that the cost of investing in newer vehicles does not 
unfairly impact on bus operators’ commercial viability, which could reduce 
competition or lead to a smaller public transport network. 

4.3.However many operators are keen to reduce emissions and even try 
alternatively fuelled vehicles should it be a viable operational option. One 
potential avenue would be central or local government grants linked to 
climate change and vehicle emissions. We are poised to bid for any fund that 
becomes available and are proposing to review the age and emissions of our 
contracted bus fleet to quantify the costs and benefits of a bus retrofit 
scheme.

4.4. It is important to understand the urban/rural context of this issue as well. 
Given the rationale behind subsidised and commercial bus services it’s 
unsurprising that most of GCC’s subsidised bus services serve rural areas of 
the county. Rural services are expensive to run as the fixed route and 
timetable approach of the traditional bus service means there is no flexibility 
in these services. An operator has to, by law, run to their route and timetable. 
This means vehicles are travelling large distances to pick up relatively few 
people and serve some villages where no-one boards at all on some days. 
We believe that a more flexible, demand-responsive approach to bus 
services in rural areas could mean we can serve many more people and give 
them much more frequent transport options to more places than they 
currently have. 

4.5.The ITU is developing a business case for two pilot schemes to improve 
public transport in rural areas, one in the Cotswolds and one in the Forest of 
Dean. These schemes would take the current demand-responsive transport 
(DRT) model of serving geographical areas rather than fixed routes and only 
upon request rather than timetabled, and enhance this to make it much more 
attractive to the passenger. The main features of the pilot are:

 Suitable hours of operation (7am-7pm Monday to Friday) – 
currently rural transport can be as infrequent as 1 return journey a 
week.

 Accessible – smaller minibus-type vehicles that allow greater 
access to remote areas and accessible for those with mobility 
issues with a low-floor and a wide aisle.

 Appeal to all – this service should be attractive to students, 
commuters and other non-bus users as well as the current bus 
using population.

 Integration with the larger bus network – rather than compete with 
the regular ‘big bus’ network the aim would be to link with it 
instead, dropping passengers at their nearest stop for a larger bus  
to their destination. This brings revenue to these bus services 
helping their viability.

 Internet and telephone booking options.

Page 20



4.6.The aim of this project is to drive local economic growth by giving employees 
and customers greater access to local businesses, and to improve the quality 
of life by giving residents greater access to health, social and education 
appointments and essential services. This would also have the added benefit 
of reducing the burden on the NHS and Social Care services; the longer we 
can keep people active and connected within their community the longer they 
can live independently without the need to rely upon social care support.

4.7.Section 106 funds from housing developments help to mitigate the transport 
impact of developments on our roads and also play a key part in funding 
improvements to bus services. These funds are vital for pump-priming bus 
services in areas they would not be commercially viable until all the dwellings 
have been occupied. We will continue to utilise these funds and work closely 
with our Planning colleagues to do so. A recent example is the 97/98 service 
between Cheltenham, Churchdown, Innsworth, Longford and Gloucester, 
where we secured funding to increase the frequency from half hourly to every 
20 minutes.

5. Summary

5.1.Whilst the risk of overspend is not removed the budget overspend risk  this 
year and next year has been significantly reduced by securing additional 
funds in the base budget and by work undertaken to manage the cost of 
expiring contracts. The ITU plans to continue its focus on the public transport 
network to manage costs, work with operators and to prepare for future 
challenges and developments to manage any financial impact.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Monitoring Report – November 2019

This report logs the recommendations made by scrutiny task group and the 
responses from individuals and organisations initial, 6, 12 and 18 months.

Biodiversity Scrutiny Task Group

Parent Committee and date set up: Environment Scrutiny Committee – October 
2018

Members: Councillors Rachel Smith (Chair), Lesley Williams, Paul Hodgkinson, 
Suzanne Williams, Shaun Parsons and Terry Hale.

Reporting date: Cabinet 24 April 2019

Background
In June 2018 a motion was unanimously carried at Gloucestershire County 
Council’s (GCC) Full Council meeting to set up a working group to look at protecting 
and encouraging biodiversity in Gloucestershire.
The task group met four times between October 2018 and April 2019, which 
included hosting a public workshop to explore biodiversity on road verges in 
Gloucestershire with other local authorities and ecological groups.

Recommendation 1
To allocate a sufficient and appropriate budget from within the total costings of every 
major highways project to protect and enhance green infrastructure, bearing in mind 
our commitment to the Green Infrastructure Pledge.

Response: 

Gloucestershire County Council Highways have a robust approach to protecting and 
enhancing green infrastructure and biodiversity as part of our major projects. During 
initial project stages an environmental checklist is completed to identify potential 
environmental constraints including features, habitats and species – this allows 
relevant specialists to become involved in developing the project in a sensitive 
manner from an early stage. The green infrastructure and biodiversity assets within 
and around a project are identified by environmental specialists (including 
ecologists, landscape architects and arboriculturalists) through a combination of 
desk-top research, consultation with relevant council officers and site surveys.
 
Our specialists work with design teams to challenge proposals and identify 
opportunities to avoid, reduce, mitigate or offset the green infrastructure and 
biodiversity impacts of a project and, if possible, deliver enhancements. Subject to 
the level of potential impact and consenting regime for a project, environmental 
assessment is undertaken following industry best practice to report on the existing 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



situation, the expected change resulting from the project, proposed mitigation 
measures and the overall significance of impact. 

Landscape and environmental design proposals are produced accompanied by 
specifications in order to achieve the intended environmental outcome. Where 
actions are required to protect environmental features during construction, 
Environmental Management Plans are produced detailing processes and exclusion 
areas that will be followed by the contractor and identifying where watching briefs 
may be required by specialists during specific activities or seasons.

Recommendation 2
To undertake to create a business case for allowing a greater collection of grass 
cuttings whilst managing verges through the purchase of suitable machinery.

Response:

Our contractor Ringway has obtained some initial costs and looked at the feasibility 
of undertaking this work on the county Highway network.

Unfortunately it is not practical to use the available cut and clear equipment on all 
Highway verges so only a limited number of flat clear sites would be suitable. This 
may change when other appropriate equipment is designed and comes on to the 
market.

An initial estimate shows an approximate 8 fold increase in the costs of cutting and 
collecting as opposed to a standard flail cut. Again this uplift cost may reduce with 
the availability of suitable equipment.

It may be a number of years before the action of grass cutting removal has the 
desired effect of reducing nitrogen levels in the verge. This would improve wild 
flower diversity and provide some reduction in verge cut and clear costs.

Recommendation 3
To commit to using low fertility treatments as an alternative to top soil, where this 
involves no extra cost.

Members learnt in the workshop that using alternatives such as chalk, limestone or 
even sand have the potential to save time and money, both on creation and during 
future management. Not only do low-fertility treatments reduce grass growth but 
they also allow wildflowers to thrive.

Response:

Embed no or low fertility treatments in scheme design and following Plantlife’s new 
technical guidance (see Recommendation 4 below) We will take care to avoid using 
too much top soil for tree planting/landscaping which can harm surrounding low 

Page 24



nutrient grassland/ wildflower vegetation. The default will normally be to not use top 
soil. Bare surfaces can be roughened up to allow colonisation by or seeding with 
appropriate wild flowers. This approach should also save costs. 

County and District Ecologists to make appropriate comments in all planning 
application consultations involving new roads including those of Highways England, 
e.g. A 417 missing link, improvements to J10 (11) of the M5, A40, large new 
strategic developments etc.

Recommendation 4

To commit to reviewing the ‘Plantlife’ technical guidance when available, to 
incorporate any practical points into the verge management strategy where possible 
and feed this back to members.

Response: 

Plantlife’s technical guidance was due spring 2019 but was only released on 27th 
September and can be found at https://www.plantlife.org.uk/uk/our-
work/publications/road-verge-management-guide . Officers are reviewing its content 
which will serve as useful detailed background information and advice. The County 
Council’s Biodiversity Guidance will be further updated accordingly to generally 
follow the Plantlife publication.

See also Recommendation 3 above

Recommendation 5

To consider the best way to mark and identify protected verges ‘on the ground’ as 
well as updating the electronic register.

There were examples given during the workshop where sub-contractors managing 
the verges have accidently cut on a protected verge. Examples such as marking the 
beginning and end of a protected verge with a white post were highlighted.

Response: 

A review has determined that the most practical and cost efficient solution is to use 
road studs in the carriageway to mark the beginning and ends of all registered 
Conservation Road Verges (as shown in the 2019 update which consists of just over 
100 verges across the county). Work to install studs has been issued to the 
contractor and should be complete by spring 2020.

If parishes want additional marking, e.g. small signs on posts, then they can do this 
at their own cost and subject to County Highways agreement.

GPS use by tractor drivers/mowing operatives is to be introduced in the medium 

Page 25

https://www.plantlife.org.uk/uk/our-work/publications/road-verge-management-guide
https://www.plantlife.org.uk/uk/our-work/publications/road-verge-management-guide


term (2021 to 2023) to map areas to be cut. This can be extended to locating 
Conservation Road Verges etc. so they are left or cut at the right time of year.

Recommendation 6

To feedback to Ringway, as the new term maintenance contractors, the Council’s 
view of taking a flexible approach when it comes to the timing and frequency of 
verge cuts.

The group agreed that the later the cut into the growing season (generally April to 
early July), the more likely it is to cause a disadvantage to flora, flowering and 
seeding. It was noted however that road safety must be the governing factor when 
considering timing/frequency of cuts throughout the year.

Response:

Following Plantlife’s new technical guidance (2019) determine what might be 
possible in 2020/2021.

We will engage with Ringway (Dec to March 2019) to trial some flexibility being built 
into the periods and frequencies for cutting visibility splays and also the main cut 
with the aim of improving biodiversity and lowering costs in the longer term.

Recommendation 7

To write to Highways England to feedback the recommendations and findings of this 
report. 

Response: 

Ongoing consultations with Highways England on major projects, including A417 
missing link scheme, where new/changed cuttings and embankments provide 
opportunities for wildflower enhancement.

Recommendations and feedback have not yet been sent formally to Highways 
England until reviewed by Scrutiny (Environment & Communities) November 2019.

See also Recommendation 3 above

Recommendation 8

To encourage better engagement with parish/town council’s regarding the 
delegation of verge management and awareness of biodiversity. 
The group acknowledge that this engagement could also come from members 
within their own parish/town Council’s. Therefore, there would be a request to 
officers to produce a short information sheet covering the following, for all members 
to distribute as they wish within their areas: 

Page 26



 How GCC can support parish/town council’s to take responsibility for their 
own verge management. 

 Awareness of biodiversity e.g. examples of recommendations from this report 
and exemplar cases such as Cold  Aston Parish

Response:

A suitable information sheet for parish/town councils will take some time to collate 
but it should be focused on biodiversity conservation but also include reference to  
Plantlife & GCC guidance, safety requirements, verge cultivation licences, litter 
picking, weed control and new emerging approaches to managing Conservation 
Road Verge’s, top soil use, plus cut and clear methods etc.

Update GCC guidance and supporting text of website page 
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/plans-policies-procedures-
manuals/biodiversity-and-highways/  to indicate GCC has a programme of trying to 
improve biodiversity on verges which is being rolled out in phases

By end of 2019 – update GCC guidance and on website page add a few references 
to GCC’s evolving work on improving biodiversity on verges.

Compile draft information sheet for parishes by February 2020 and agree final 
version for April 2020

Page 27

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/plans-policies-procedures-manuals/biodiversity-and-highways/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/plans-policies-procedures-manuals/biodiversity-and-highways/


This page is intentionally left blank



Director’s Report, Communities & Infrastructure - Scrutiny Committee Report

November 2019

This report summarises key areas likely to lead to decisions over the next 6 months, 
including updates on areas previously reported.  

1.1     Relevant forthcoming decisions, by date due:
 Gloucestershire Local Transport Plan Review - Public Consultation - 20 December 

Cabinet
 Proposals for partnership working and future governance arrangements between 

Gloucestershire Waste Disposal and Collection Authorities- 20 December Cabinet
 Waste Collection Authority Incentive Payments- 20 December Cabinet
 Concessionary Travel Scheme - Operator Reimbursement- 20 December Cabinet
 Responding to the Climate Change Emergency: Glos Climate Change Strategy 2019/20 

– 2024/25 20 December Cabinet

1.2 Pending Items not yet published on the Forward Plan:
 Lydney Harbour Bid
 Traffic Regulations Order Consultation (Boots Corner)
 Parking Charges
 Proposed Consultation on County Council Traveller Site Management options

1.3 Pending Individual Cabinet member decisions:
 Revised Fastershire Broadband Strategy 

2.0 Highways update

2.1 Highways Contracts
 Ringway’s defect repair performance continues to improve with performance. 

Additional resource has been put in place to eliminate backlog and allow there to be a 
concentration on forward performance as winter season approaches. 

 The Structural Maintenance Contract went out to tender w/c 21st October 2019.
 Work on the development of the multi-party Highway Skills Academy is underway.  

There are new apprentices (10+) in place across the highways team and partners 
promoted a joint presence as Gloucestershire Highways Skills Academy at the National 
Apprentice Show in October at Cheltenham Racecourse.

2.2 £150m Highways Improvement Programme 
 An accelerated programme has been agreed and involves £3m brought forward into 

19/20, and £2m into 20/21, leaving the remainder of the additional funding in 21/22. 
Delivery remains on track.  

2.3 A40 West Cheltenham Transport Improvement Schemes/Business Park
 Project remains on track with the business case development ongoing for Phase 1 and 

2 (Arle Court/Golden Valley A40).  The Phase 1 and 2 business case is scheduled for 
considered by the LEP board in December 2019.  The Outline Business was approved 
in October 2019 subject to completion of outstanding elements as part of future Full 
Business Cases for phases 1-4.  The Cabinet Paper for procurement of Phases 1 and 
2 will be considered by Cabinet in November.  Initial feasibility and preliminary design 
work is progressing for phases 3 and 4. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=30016&Opt=0
http://10.90.90.208:9070/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=30657&Opt=0
http://10.90.90.208:9070/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=30657&Opt=0
http://10.90.90.208:9070/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=30656&Opt=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=30414&Opt=0
file:///C:/Users/bwatts/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/64BG9623/%E2%80%A2%09Responding%20to%20the%20Climate%20Change%20Emergency:%20Glos%20Climate%20Change%20Strategy%202019/20%20%E2%80%93%202024/25%20(slipped%20from%20November%E2%80%99s%20Cabinet%20meeting)
file:///C:/Users/bwatts/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/64BG9623/%E2%80%A2%09Responding%20to%20the%20Climate%20Change%20Emergency:%20Glos%20Climate%20Change%20Strategy%202019/20%20%E2%80%93%202024/25%20(slipped%20from%20November%E2%80%99s%20Cabinet%20meeting)


2.4 A419 junction improvements (Stonehouse)
 Construction commenced in March 2019 and works are currently progressing at 

Chipmans Platt Roundabout and Oldends Lane. As works progress, issues have arisen 
with uncharted utilities at the Chipmans Platt site. GCC and contractors Knights Brown 
are working closely with Energetics Gas Ltd and Severn Trent to resolve these issues 
and mitigate the impact on the project programme.  The works will move sequentially 
westwards, in order to minimise the impact on the project programme works will 
progress on multiple sites.  Due to the utility issues, programmed completion is now 
anticipated at the end of spring 2020.

2.5 A38 Cross Keys roundabout (Hardwicke) 
 This scheme was formally opened on the 15th October 2019. 

2.6 Gloucester South West Bypass / Llanthony Road
 Planning permission for the scheme was granted April 2019.  Negotiations with 

landowners are still ongoing.  Officers are twin tracking CPO in case negotiations fail.

2.7 B4063 / A40 Highways England Cycling Scheme – Cheltenham to Gloucester
 Highways England (HE) are currently progressing their c. £4M major cycle scheme 

between Cheltenham and Gloucester. This project will need to link into the emerging 
GCC Cabinet-approved £22M transport improvement schemes to the west of 
Cheltenham. 

 In order to fulfil funding criteria this scheme originally needed to be completed by March 
2020. This, however, has recently been extended to construction starting in 2020, as 
part of the RIS2 process. 

3.0 Strategic Infrastructure Update

3.1 A417 Missing Link
 The Preferred Route Announcement (Route 30) was made by Highways England in 

March 2019.  Statutory public consultation is ongoing (27th September to 8th 
November 2019).  An officer-level response to this consultation was agreed with Lead 
Cabinet Members. The RIS2 announcement is expected November 2019.  A 
Development Consent Order (DCO) planning application will be submitted by HE to 
the Planning Inspectorate in Spring 2020.

3.2 M5 Junction 10 – Housing Infrastructure Fund Bid
 An Outline Business Case (OBC) was submitted to the Ministry of Housing, 

Communities, and Local Government on 21st March 2019.  Additional GCC revenue 
was secured to progress this project 2019/20-2020/21.  A decision on the success of 
the OBC is expected in late 2019.  If successful, there will be an opportunity to claim 
back significant elements of the business case development costs.

3.3 M5 Junction 9 and A46 (Ashchurch)
 A Pre Strategic Outline Business Case (Pre-SOBC) was submitted to the Department 

for Transport (DfT) for funding through the Large Local Majors programme in July 
2019.  Feedback from the DfT has been provided with clarifications required on a few 
issues.  A decision is expected regarding the scheme’s progression from Pre-SOBC to 
the Strategic Outline Business case (SOBC) stage later in the year.

Page 30



 The A46 Partnership, including the Midlands Connect SNTB are fully supportive of the 
SOBC being undertaken by GCC.

3.4 Improved rail connectivity
 The 1st phase of Gloucestershire’s Rail Strategy has been commissioned.  Phase 1 will 

identify those quick wins that can be delivered in the short-term outside Network Rail’s 
Control Period investment process.  The report will also identify larger scale investment 
requirements to support future growth.  These improvements would be considered in 
more detail in the 2nd Phase of the Rail Strategy.  The outputs from Phase 2 would 
then be used to lobby Network Rail to influence investment decisions made for Control 
Period 7 (2024-2029) and Control Period 8 (2029-2034).

 In July at a meeting with Network Rail and Great Western Railway it was confirmed that 
no infrastructure interventions were required for the MetroWest Phase 2 Gloucester 
extension to operate.  An hourly direct service to London from Cheltenham/Gloucester 
has been included in the December 2019 timetable change.  

 Work has commenced on the Western Gateway SNTB rail strategy.  The emerging 
regional priorities include enhancements to the Bristol to Birmingham rail corridor was 
identified as a one of the key priorities.  Network Rail have now confirmed that this is 
one of three schemes that will be examined in 2020 as part of their Continuous 
Modular Strategic Planning process. 

 The Strategic Outline Business Case (SOBC) for service improvements on the North 
Cotswold Line has been produced.  It sets out the various work strands and cost to 
progress the proposed works through the ‘Develop’ stage leading to an Outline 
Business Case and Single Option Report.  The scheme will bring about an improved 
service frequency (including calling at Moreton in Marsh) and reduced journey times to 
London.    

 The Transport for Wales service from Maesteg to Gloucester/Cheltenham continues to 
deteriorate with services being cancelled on a regular basis.  

3.5 Digital connectivity
 Discussions are continuing with Gigaclear, Airband, Voneus and BT about potential 

contract extensions to provide solutions for remaining premises still to be enabled.
 An Industry Engagement Day was held in the summer, to showcase the key strategic 

future growth opportunities in the Joint Core Strategy Area for private sector suppliers 
to consider investing and delivering a full fibre network. The event was successful with 
10 suppliers and representatives attending and positive discussions held, and some 
further follow up with two specific suppliers to date.  

3.6 Local Plans
 The Local Transport Plan (LTP) is currently being reviewed, with a view to adopting the 

revised Plan in 2020/21.  Anticipated to take Draft LTP (pre- public consultation) to 17th 
December 2019 Cabinet, with a public consultation proposed for early 2020. 

 The draft Minerals Local Plan has been submitted to the Government.  Public 
consultation on proposed main modifications ended 11th September 2019 and the 
Inspector’s report is awaited.

4.0 Community Infrastructure Update

4.1 Cheltenham Transport Plan 
 Cheltenham Borough Council’s cabinet supported a report on 5th November 

recommending that the experimental TRO is made permanent. The next step will be for 

Page 31



GCC to hold a Traffic Regulation Committee. It will make a recommendation to GCC’s 
cabinet which meets on 20th December to decide whether the scheme is made 
permanent or abandoned. The original TRC date, 11th December, falls the day before 
the General Election and, having consulted the head of DSU, officers recommend 
holding the TRC on 16th December to address concerns about breaching pre-election 
period rules and to ensure that sufficient committee members are available.

 Replacement of the temporary signals at the junction of Clarence Parade and Clarence 
Street started on the 4th November. Local businesses were notified in advance through 
liaison with the BID and Ringway staff will introduce themselves when works start on 
site.

4.2 Public Transport
 A significant round of contract retendering is almost over; approximately 75% of total 

contract value on public transport has been retendered in the last 18 months. From the 
end of 2019 there is a much lighter retender plan.

 A project looking into the delivery of rural transport has begun; further detail will be 
available in late 2019/early 2020.

4.3 Parking
 Following the Road Safety Motion to Council in September 2019 officers attended a 

special meeting of Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee on 29th 
October 2019. Their report included a review of TRO costs and processes which are 
widely regarded as being expensive, not sufficiently agile and or transparent. The 
Committee asked for a Cabinet Task Group to be established to take forward some of 
their concerns. 

 A new TRO Manager has been appointed; they will start the role in December and 
have a wealth of expertise in the TRO and legal world. One of their main focusses will 
be to review current practices to make efficiencies. 

4.4 Highways Development Management
 Recruitment of seven senior officer posts has commenced following the decision to 

apply market rate supplements. Interviews are scheduled for early December.

4.5 Climate Change 
 The results of the public consultation clearly demonstrate concern by the public (84%) 

and businesses (88%) in Gloucestershire about climate change and its impacts. 97% of 
online responses indicated that they were concerned about the impact of climate 
change (either a lot or a little).  Cabinet will consider the draft at its meeting in 
December 2019.

 58 applications were received for the Climate Change Youth Panel and of these 40 
were appointed. The quality of applicants was very strong. The Panel have now met on 
multiple occasions to review the proposals in the draft strategy. Cabinet will consider 
the draft strategy at its meeting on 13th November 2029. 

4.6 Air Quality 
 To deliver the Gloucestershire Air Quality and Health Strategy action plans are being 

prepared by three sub-groups: Monitoring & Behaviour Change, Active Travel and 
Electric vehicles & Clean Fleet. Many actions that help to improve local air quality 
complement our climate change strategy and will feature in the draft Climate Change 
action plan. Resources will be sought from the proposed £1m Action Fund and other 
sources.

Page 32



4.7 Cycling
 On 20th September 2019 students from Tewkesbury School joined three cabinet 

members on e-bikes for the launch of Travel By-Cycle, a leaflet which sets out our 
vision for building a cycle network across the county. 

5.0 Waste Management
5.1 Joint Waste Committee 
 Discussions continue with district councils on future waste partnership working. 

Consensus has been reached amongst county and district officers on a future 
partnership proposal based on a less formal arrangement. The partnership would focus 
on the development and delivery of a new joint resources and waste strategy for 
Gloucestershire and would work together on joint communications and infrastructure 
planning. The proposal was agreed by attendees at the October meeting of the 
Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee. Terms of reference for the new partnership 
will now be agreed and each Gloucestershire local authority invited to join.

 Outline agreement has been reached by county and district officers on a replacement 
of the Food Waste Collection and Delivery arrangements. The proposal was 
considered at GJWC meeting in October and will be considered by GCC cabinet in 
December 2019. The new agreements would take effect July 2020. 

 Commissioning of the Javelin Park Energy from Waste facility continues.

6.0 Library and Registration Update
6.1 Libraries
 Building work at Stonehouse Library is anticipated to commence mid November 2019.  

The aim is to open the facility in April 2020.  
 Unfortunately a member of library staff working at Gloucester Library passed away at 

work on Monday 23rd September 2019.  The library was closed on Tuesday 24th 
September and OHU are providing support to the staff.  The funeral was held on 
Thursday 17th October 2019.  

 Plans are starting to progress for a 2nd Innovation Lab at Gloucester Library.  
 Officers are exploring 7 initial locations for community access points within rural 

locations following the mobile library vehicle’s failure.  

Contact Officer
Colin Chick, Strategic Advisor (Communities & Infrastructure)
colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk, 01452 328470

Page 33

mailto:colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Environment & Communities Scrutiny Scorecard

Quarter 2 2019/2020

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

Page no.
Key to Symbols 2
Highways & Flood 3
Environment & Planning 4
Strategic Risk Register Summary 6

1

P
age 35



Level of
Risk Score

Low 1 - 6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Performance better than tolerance

Performance within tolerance

Performance worse than tolerance

No information

Missing target

No value

Value Increasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Decreasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Increasing (Bigger is Better)
Value Decreasing (Bigger is Better)

No change

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Plan is best Where it is best for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Key to Symbols

Key to Symbols - Risk

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with

the Likelihood of each risk)

The Gloucestershire Risk Matrix

2

P
age 36



Highways & Flood
Cllr Vernon Smith

Highways & Floods

Percentage
of 2 hour
emergency
repairs made
on time

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

92.8 % 91.0 % 92.0 % 80.0 % 82.0 % 88.0 % 86.0 % 78.0 % 96.0 %

There was a system issue
identified in July.
Since then reported
performance has improved
month on month to 86% in
September

Publicly
Reported

Percentage
of 24 hour
defects
repaired on
time

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

97.7 % 98.6 % 98.5 % 85.0 % 80.0 % 89.0 % 91.0 % 88.0 % 96.0 %

There has been a system issue
which was identified in July
Since then the reported
performance has improved
month on month with 91%
being achieved in September

Publicly
Reported

28 day
defects
repaired or
made safe -
overall %
repaired in
time (other
defects)

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

98.8 % 99.5 % 99.5 % 50.0 % 55.0 % 81.0 % 92.0 % 74.0 % 95.0 %

There was a system issue
identified in July.
Since then reported
performance has been
improving month on month to
92% in September

Publicly
Reported

% of structural
maintenance programme
delivered

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter 25.0 % 62.0 % 50.0 %

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Qtr Sep-18 Qtr Dec-18 Qtr Mar-19 Qtr Jun-19 Mth Jul-19 Mth Aug-19 Mth Sep-19 Qtr Sep-19 Target Sep-

19 Comments Qtr Sep-19

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Qtr Sep-18 Qtr Dec-18 Qtr Mar-19 Qtr Jun-19 Qtr Sep-19 Target Sep-

19 Comments Qtr Sep-19

3

P
age 37



Environment & Planning
Cllr Nigel Moor

Passenger Transport

Cost per journey -
community transport
journeys

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter £4.05 £3.86 £4.29 £4.05 £4.04 £4.00

Publicly
Reported

Subsidised bus journeys
provided in the county

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 103 104 104 104 104 105 Publicly
Reported

Number of community
transport bus journeys

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 24,913 26,167 29,109 25,758 25,232 25,000 Publicly
Reported

Cost per journey on bus
services in receipt of
subsidy

Smaller is
Better Year to Date £1.55 £1.55 £1.45

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Qtr Sep-18 Qtr Dec-18 Qtr Mar-19 Qtr Jun-19 Qtr Sep-19 Target Qtr

Sep-19 Comments Qtr Sep-19

4

Data accuracy project to be completed shortly, refined 
figures from Q3 onwards. 

Climate Change

Renewable energy
generation (kWh) from the
Council Estate (exc
schools)

Bigger is
Better

 Year to Date 4,014 8,149 9,351 12,771 21,842 Publicly
Reported

Council Carbon Emissions,
buildings & transport (exc
schools) Tonnes of CO2e

Smaller is
Better Year to Date 1,823.24 3,345.25 5,783.90 8,121.17 1,367.60 11,552.00

Publicly
Reported

Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Quarterly Trend Analysis - No Target (1 Quarter In Arrears)

Qtr Jun-18 Qtr Sep-18 Qtr Dec-18 Qtr Mar-19 Qtr Jun-19 Comments Qtr Jun-19

Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target (1 Quarter In Arrears)

Qtr Jun-18 Qtr Sep-18 Qtr Dec-18 Qtr Mar-19 Qtr Jun-19 Target Qtr
Jun-19 Comments Qtr Jun-19

P
age 38



Waste

% of household waste sent to landfill
Smaller is
Better Forecast 46.0 % 45.4 % 45.0 % 44.6 % 14.0 %

A reduction in waste sent to landfill as residual waste is now
being treated at Javelin Park. 39,000 tonnes of household
waste was landfilled up to August 2019 and we are basing
this forecast on the EfW facility being in operation in
Quarters 3 and 4. However, Javelin Park is still in its
commissioning phase, and further landfill may occur during
this period.

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Forecast - No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q2 Forecast
Outturn
2018/19

Q3 Forecast
Outturn
2018/19

Outturn
2018/19

Q1 Forecast
Outturn
2019/20

Q2 Forecast
Outturn
2019/20

Comments Q2 2019/20

5

Residual household waste per household
(Kgs)

Smaller is
Better

Forecast 457 454 450 488 466 479 Publicly
Reported

Percentage of household waste sent for
reuse, recycling and composting

Bigger is
Better

Forecast 54.3 % 54.6 % 52.8 % 50.2 % 50.0 % 51.0 %

We are still using a mix of actual tonnage
data and forecast tonnage data back as far as
August due to this being the transition period
between landfill and EfW processes.
This figure has reduced since 2018/19 due to
wood waste now being used as a biomass
material and no longer counted as recycling.
However, it is being diverted from the
residual waste stream, so does not increase
the residual waste tonnage. There is the
potential for an extra 1% recycling to be
added before the end of March 2020
resulting from metals recovery at the EfW.
However, there is no data to support this at
this point in time, and the forecast of 50%
excludes it in this quarter.

Publicly
Reported

Yearly Trend Analysis - Forecast Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Q2 Forecast
Outturn
2018/19

Q3 Forecast
Outturn
2018/19

Outturn
2018/19

Q1 Forecast
Outturn
2019/20

Q2 Forecast
Outturn
2019/20

Q2 Target
Outturn
2019/20

Q2 Comments 2019/20

P
age 39



Strategic Risk Register Summary

SR4.1
Failure to deliver expected benefits/outcomes from the Residual
waste project impacting on future budgets and the
environment.

Chick, Colin High 25 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

Continuous monitoring of the construction and
mobilisation of the new Energy from Waste Facility,
which remains on schedule. Waste deliveries
commenced to site (starting June 2019) and
commissioning process (including testing) is
underway. Procurement exercise underway for the
sale of electricity produced by the facility. New
contract officer in place.

SR12.1

Failure of the Council/Gloucestershire to adapt to a more
volatile climate, with rising temperatures, continually high and
increasing energy prices and the increasing need to reduce
carbon emissions.

Chick, Colin High 25 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

Pete Wiggins
Emissions reductions for Q1 continue to be ahead of
target in comparison to the previous year.

The reduction will be due to a mix of LED Street
Lighting installations, Shire Hall refurbishment and
pool and hire car use.
Some of the increase in fleet emissions will be from
increased fuel use by pool and hire cars, which would
also account for some of the reduction in business
mileage claims emissions.

Significant progress made in taking forward the
climate agenda:

11th Sep Council unanimous resolution to work with
the NHS, Glos Constabulary and district councils to
ensure that all new public buildings, residential and
commercial developments in Glos support the move
to zero carbon
Climate Change Strategy presentations to Env
Scrutiny 17th July, and Glos Royal Hospital Trust's NHS
Sustainability 'Big Conversation' staff conference 27th
Sep
Youth Climate Panel established, first meeting held
21st Sep
Public consultation ended 23 Sep, 1,000
representative residents and 200 business telephone
surveys, plus over 2,300 online responses
Working to take strategy to Nov Cabinet then Dec
Leadership Gloucestershire meeting

Strategic Risk 4: Waste Management
Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk Residual Risk

Qtr Dec-18
Residual Risk
Qtr Mar-19

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun-19

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep-19

Direction of
Travel Mitigating Actions

Strategic Risk 12: Climate Change
Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk Residual Risk

Qtr Dec-18
Residual Risk
Qtr Mar-19

Residual Risk
Qtr Jun-19

Residual Risk
Qtr Sep-19

Direction of
Travel Mitigating Actions

6

P
age 40



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2019-20

26 November 2019 15 January 2020 4 March 2020

Increase in costs of re-tendering public 
transport services

A429 Task Group Update

Cabinet feedback on the Biodiversity Task Group 
report

Electric Vehicle Infrastructure

Quarter 2 2019/20 Performance Report

20 May 2020 15 July 2020 23 September 2020

Quarter 3 2019/20 Performance Report Quarter 4 2019/20 Performance Report

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 9



POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS

1 Lengthsmen Scheme – To consider the 
effectiveness of the Scheme

6 months 
post April 
2019

7 Dynamic Purchasing System for Transport

2 Footways (in relation to Motion 787: 
Pavements) – to be revisited early 2019

6 months 
post April 
2019

8 Infrastructure South – including the third river 
crossing 

3 Air Pollution and its Impact on Public Health 
Task Group

Members 
sent update 
report 
23.5.19

9 Infrastructure Planning

4 Ringway mobilisation – How the new term 
maintenance contract is going

8 months 
after April 
2019

10 Climate change reduction pledge

5 Cotswold National Park Status – To receive an 
update on the review of the proposal

On hold 
until after 
Glover 
review

11 Visit to Javelin Park

6 DMMO – To receive a report from the outreach 
post holder regarding application demand

6 months 
after budget 
2019

P
age 42


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Final minutes

	4 The increase in costs of re-tendering public transport services
	5 Cabinet feedback on the Biodiversity Task Group report
	8 Director's Report: COMMUNITIES & INFRASTRUCTURE
	Environment  Communities Scrutiny Q2

	9 Work Plan



